
Town of Belgrade 
Planning Board 

Sept. 2, 2021 / 6 p.m. 
 

Belgrade Town Office 
990 Augusta Road 

Belgrade, ME 04917 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person.  
The public may also view the meeting and participate online at 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83033101494  

 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to order  

1. OLD BUSINESS 
A. SHORELAND APPLICATION – Applicant/Owner: Craig Lefebvre. Location: 9 

Homeward Way (Great Pond), Map 15 Lot 18. Purpose: Add square footage 
to existing cabins, remove 3 uprooted and dying trees (non-conforming 
structures on a conforming lot).  

B. COMMERCIAL APPLICATION – Applicants/Owners: Kathryn DiBerardino 
(applicant)/Ladies of the Lakes (owner); Location: 11 School Street; Map 25 
Lot 60. Purpose: Renovate existing structure. Will not change square footage 
(2/3 of building will be residential; 1/3 building dedicated to classroom space). 

C. Consideration of Aug. 19, 2021, Planning Board minutes. 
2. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion of Commercial Development Review Ordinance amendments 
related to solar, wind and telecommunication developments.  

3. ADJOURN 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83033101494










Cabin 1



Cabin 1



Cabin 2



Cabin 2



 

 

1)   Follow DEP’s stormwater best management practices.  Vote of approval 4-1-0  *Sara 

Languet abstained due to not being part of original discussion.  

2) Construction and use shall not include cooking facilities. 

3) Contingent to providing DEP Contractor number to Code Enforcement Officer. 

 

 

2. NEW BUSINESS 

 A. COMMERCIAL APPLICATION – Applicants/Owners: Kathryn DiBerardino 

(applicant)/Ladies of the Lakes (owner); Location: 11 School Street; Map 25 Lot 60. 

Purpose: Renovate existing structure. Will not change square footage (2/3 of building  

will be residential; 1/3 building dedicated to classroom space). 

Check list discussed and the following is needed: 

1) Town tax map  

2) Topographical map 

3) Email information to the Fire Department 

4) Email a waiver for Control plan and DEP certified Contractor. 

The Planning Board will email application to the Fire Chief.  

Parking spaces need more work so Kate Diberardino will be working with the Code Enforcement Officer 

regarding how many are needed and Kate will be reaching out to the church’s regarding using some of 

their parking spaces.  

B. COMMERCIAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY INQUIRY - Past and future uses of 1005  

Augusta Road, currently operating as Belgrade Canoe & Kayak. Code Enforcement Officer.   

Waiting for the outcome of the Tuesday meeting between Shawn, Town Manager and  

3. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of meeting minutes from April 15, 2021 and April 20, 2021. 

Minutes of April 15, 2021 needs more clarification on old business 2nd paragraph.  Motion made by 

George Seel to table the minutes of April 15, 2021 pending revision, 2nd by Sara Languet.  4-0 Tabled. 

Motion to pass minutes of April 20, 2021 as amended by Rich Baker, 2nd by Sara Languet 3-0.  Peter 

Rushton and Pete Sargent abstained due to not attending the meeting.  

Motion to adjourn by Sara Languet, 2nd by George Seel.  Adjourned  

npoole
Highlight

























































































































From: George Seel
To: Peter Rushton; perushton@roadrunner.com; peter.rushton@maine.gov <peter.rushton@maine.gov>;

ctetelman@kvcog.org; crgsnbe@yahoo.com; Richard Baker; peterfsargent@aol.com; Sara Languet; Gary Fuller;
Anthony Wilson

Subject: Adding solar farm standards to CDRO
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 11:16:12 AM

EXTERNAL MESSAGE:
All,
 
I was thinking more about our discussion last night about the need to not only finish our work on the
subdivision ordinance, but to jump start work on amendments to the Commercial Development

Review Ordinance since we have very little time left if it is to go to the voters on Nov. 2nd.  We each
should give thought to ideas how to reasonably regulate non-residential solar arrays.  Here is a
document from one of the State’s larger law firms that starts to lay out the bounds within which
municipalities may regulate solar energy production.
https://www.rudmanwinchell.com/municipal-regulation-of-solar-power-in-maine
 
Note the imbedded link to best management practices for siting and developing solar farms
developed by the Maine Audubon Society and the Natural Resources Council of Maine to minimize
the potential negative impacts on wildlife and other natural resources. 
 
Charles, something for you to give some thought to – since Belgrade is largely wooded, it is not
unreasonable to assume a future prospective larger scale solar farm may propose large scale
clearing of forest land.  Since sustainable forest management is an effective means to sequester
carbon dioxide and since renewable energy production is in large part about minimiumizing the
worst impacts of climate change from greenhouse gases (e.g. carbon dioxide, methane), it seems to
me counter productive to allow large scale land clearing of trees to site a solar farm.  Do you know of
a method to calculate the tipping point between carbon sequestration in forestland vs. carbon
emissions reduction via solar energy production?  This may be too much to ask, but I’ve seen
considerable literature on the selling of carbon credits by large forest land owners in Maine and
carbon sequestration under various forest management schemes.  I just don’t have the access to the
resources to figure this out.  So for example, hypothetically if 50 acres of forest land were cleared for
solar farm, the resulting release of the sequestered carbon dioxide and the loss of future
sequestration outweigh the projected carbon emission reductions resulting from the energy
produced by a 50 acre solar farm?   Alternatively, if a proposed solar farm intents to clear 50, 100
acres, is there a means to calculate the $ value not only of the loss of those trees as resource but as
a form of carbon sequestration as is done on carbon market and require the developer to pay that
amount to 7 Lakes Alliance’s or the Maine Woodland Owner’s  land trusts for the purchase and
protection of lands elsewhere in Belgrade or the immediate area?  Not unlike how developers
compensate on the market for damaging wetlands or when polluters pay natural resource damages
under State law.
 
At a minimum I would like to see our ordinance to encourage solar energy production on large non-
residential buildings (e.g. Belgrade Central School, Hammond Lumber’s acres of roof top, Gagne
Cement, etc.) and impaired lands that could be returned to a productive use (e.g. abandoned town
landfill, State uncontrolled hazardous waste and other remediation sites, sites contaminated such

mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user292da846
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:ctetelman@kvcog.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user7fceccb8
mailto:rpbaker11@gmail.com
mailto:peterfsargent@aol.com
mailto:slanguet@gmail.com
mailto:ceo@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
https://www.rudmanwinchell.com/municipal-regulation-of-solar-power-in-maine


the ground water is not useable, maybe abandoned gravel pits, etc.).  By encourage, I mean not
place unnecessary institutional barriers in the ordinance.  So, for example, the Board discussed
exempting roof top solar arrays and limiting regulation to ground mounted last fall when discussing
the moratorium now in place.
 
A few thoughts to get the synapses firing…
 
George  
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


 

Town of Belgrade 
Planning Board 

990 Augusta Rd, Belgrade, ME 04917 
August 19, 2021 / 6:00 p.m. 

 
This meeting was conducted in person at the Belgrade Town Office and online via Zoom. A 

recording of this meeting can be viewed at 

https://youtu.be/uUlcpsswOt0 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

Present:  Planning Board Members Peter Rushton, George Seel, Craig Alexander, Sara Languet, 
Pete Sargent, Rich Baker (Alt.), Code Enforcement Officer Gary Fuller, Planning Board 
Secretary Julie Morrison, Shawn Grant, Samantha Grant, Stacy Richard, Jeff Allen, Roger Katz, 
JTS II, Olivia Spring, Hailey, Terry Terhune, Sue Terhune, Sam Spring, Bruce Marshall, Ryan 
Eldridge, Craig Lefebvre.    
 
Called to Order by Chairman Peter Rushton @ 6:05 pm 
 
1. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. COMMERICIAL DEVELOPMENT in SHORELAND ZONE APPLICATION –   
Discussion and consideration of a waiver request for a COMMERICIAL 
DEVELOPMENT in SHORELAND ZONE APPLICATION – Change of use of 
prior approved application. Applicants/Owners: Brightside Wooden Boat 
Services, Inc. / Shawn Grant Location: 21 Hulin Road, Map 26 Lot 58. Purpose: 
New commercial use (home occupation business to a commercial operation). No 
new construction. 

Motion and 2nd to activate the tabled application for Brightside Wooden 
Boat Services, Inc/Shawn Grant.  5-0 

A waiver was requested, and the Planning Board stated a waiver is not part 
of what the Planning board can do, and a variance is handled by the 
Appeals Board.  Mr. Katz stated 3 different applications that a waiver was 
issued by the planning board.  The board discussed following the 
ordinance regardless of errors made in the past.  A motion by Pete Sargent 
to consider a waiver, 2nd by Craig Alexander.  3 No -2 Yes.  Motion did not 
pass.  Mr. Katz requested the application by tabled.  Craig Alexander made 
a motion to table the Brightside Wooden Boat Services, Inc. / Shawn Grant 
application, 2nd by Pete Sargent.  5-0 application tabled. 

 

https://youtu.be/uUlcpsswOt0


 

 
2. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. SHORELAND APPLICATION –  
Applicant/Owner: Craig Lefebvre 
Location: 9 Homeward Way (Great Pond), Map 15 Lot 18  
Purpose: Add square footage to existing cabins, remove 3 uprooted and dying 
trees (non-conforming structures on a conforming lot).  
The Board decided a site visit was needed and scheduled the visit for 
Monday, August 23, 2021 @ 5:30 pm.  Additional information was requested 
of the applicant, (Language and drawings) George Seel made a motion to 
table the application until after site visit, 2nd Sara Languet.  5-0 Application 
tabled.    
 
B. SHORELAND APPLICATION –  
Applicant/Owner: John Berthiaume 
Location: 30 Hulin Road (Belgrade Stream Great Pond), Map 26 Lot 36  
Purpose: Make current porch 1/12 carry the same roof pitch 5/12 to allow proper 
strength for current snow load per code (non-conforming structure on non-
conforming lot). 
Craig Alexander made a motion to accept the application with condition of 
following the DEP Best Management Practices, 2nd by Sara Languet.  The 
Findings of Facts were completed.  Vote of 5-0, Application approved.  
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Discuss Commercial Development vegetative screening standards.  

Motion by Pete Sargent to approve the schematics (Picture & text) to be 
added to the Commercial Development application, 2nd by Craig 
Alexander 5-0 Approved. 

 
 
3. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of meeting minutes from June 22, 2021, July 15, 2021, and 
August 5, 2021. 
Motion by Peter Rushton to approve the June 22, 2021, minutes as 
amended, 2nd by Rich 3-0 approved. 
 
Motion by George Seel to approve the July 15, 2021, minutes as amended, 
2nd by Sara Languet 5-0 approved. 
 
Motion by Sara Languet to approve the August 5, 2021, minutes, 2nd by 
Craig Alexander 5-0 approved.  

ADJOURN @ 8:30 pm 


	Sept. 2, 2021, Planning Board packet
	Sept. 2, 2021, Planning Board packet
	Sept. 2, 2021, Planning Board packet
	diberardino church
	diberardino tax map
	Sept. 2, 2021, Planning Board packet
	Sept. 2, 2021, Planning Board agenda
	lefebvre application
	dibarardino minutes
	Adding solar farm standards to CDRO
	08.19.21 pb minutes draft


	DiBerardino application

	dibernardino materials

	milliken email

